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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, [ am pleased to present the annual report of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

In 2004, the Group’s turnover and net profit amounted to HK$2,450.6 million and HK$245.0 million, representing

decreases of 1% and 51% over 2003 respectively.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2004
(2003: HK7 cents per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Vitamin C Series

The output of vitamin C for the year amounted to 18,434 tonnes, an increase of 30% over last year. Following the
completion of the capacity expansion of some PRC manufacturers, prices of vitamin C declined from the
exceptionally high level in 2003. The average price of vitamin C for the year was US$4.3 per kg, a decrease of 27%
as compared with US$5.9 kg in 2003. The gross profit margin of the entire series decreased from 63.2% in 2003 to

41.8% in current year.

With the completion of the Group’s new production line in June 2004, our total production capacity has reached
30,000 tonnes per annum. Following the expansion of capacity, we are now devoting all our efforts to expand our

domestic and overseas market shares and produce more downstream products.
Penicillin Series

The output of penicillin for the year amounted to 4,889 tonnes, a decrease of 7% over last year. Owing to the
intensive market competition, prices remained low. The average prices of penicillin industrial salt and amoxicillin
for the year were US$9.05 and US§20.76 per kg respectively. The gross profit margin of the entire series decreased
from 32.6% in 2003 to 15.9% in current year. However, following the reduction in production volume and closure
of production lines of some PRC manufacturers, product prices have rebounded slightly in the fourth quarter of
2004.

The Company’s new production lines in Inner Mongolia are close to completion and are expected to put into full
production in the second quarter of 2005. With the competitive edge in low production cost, we will be in a stronger
position to expand our market share and improve the profit margin.

Cephalosporin Series

The output of 7-ACA for the year reached 819 tonnes, an increase of 26% over last year. The 7-ACA market was
relatively stable in 2004 and the average price was US$85.13 per kg, slightly higher than last year’s. Affected by
the rise in production cost, the gross profit margin of the entire series decreased from 22.6% in 2003 to current
year’s 17.8%.




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
(cont’d)

In 2005, we will strive to improve the production efficiency of 7-ACA in order to increase the production volume

and reduce the cost,
Finished Drugs

Owing to the intensive market competition and the tightened government control over the use of antibiotics, various
finished drug products witnessed a decrease in prices, thereby bringing down the gross profit margin of this line of
business from 29.3% in 2003 to 23.0% in current year. Notwithstanding the unfavourable market conditions, the

Group managed to expand our market share and the turnover increased 21% to HK$947.8 million in current year.

With the capacity expansion of the bulk drugs and the increase in downstream products, the Group will strive to

increase our market share in the finished drug market and increase the profit contribution.
FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Position

The Group’s operating activities generated a net cash inflow of HK$501.8 million for 2004. As a result of the
capacity expansion of all our major products, capital expenditure for the year reached HK$1,453.7 million, which
was financed by the operating cash flow, bank loans and cash on hand of the Group. At December 31, 2004, the
Group’s current ratio was 0.95 to 1. Subsequent to December 31, 2004, the Group has obtained long-term bank
loans of HK$140 million in order to restore the current ratio to a more healthy level. Debtor turnover period (ratio
of the total of trade receivables and bills receivable balance to sales, inclusive of value added tax for sales in PRC)

was 59 days. Inventory turnover period (ratio of inventories balance to cost of goods sold) was 91 days.

At December 31, 2004, the Group had total borrowings of HKS$1,122.0 million (comprising bank loans of
HKS$1,067.2 million and loans from ultimate holding company of HK$54.8 million). The maturity profile of the
total borrowings spreads over a period of four years with HK$249.8 million repayable within one year and
HK$872.2 million between one to four years. Net gearing ratio was 27%, which was calculated on the basis of the

Group’s total borrowings net of bank balances and cash of HK$518.0 million over equity at the balance sheet date.
60% of the Group’s borrowings is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the remaining 40% in Renminbi. The
Group’s revenues are either in Renminbi or in US dollars. Our exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations is
limited as the exchange rates between these currencies are relatively stable.

Capital Commitment and Pledge of Assets

At December 31, 2004, the Group had capital commitment of HK$339.8 million in respect of capital expenditure for
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

At December 31, 2004, the Group had pledged all the equity interests of a wholly-owned subsidiary and bank
deposits of HK$16.7 million for securing certain banking facilities granted to the Group.




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
(cont’d)

EMPLOYEES

At the balance sheet date, the Group has about 9,815 employees, the majority of them are employed in the PRC. The
Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages, discretionary share options and bonuses to staff based

on the performance of the Group and the individual employee.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere thanks to our
shareholders for their support and to our staff for their commitment and diligence during the year.

By order of the Board
CAI DONG CHEN

Chairman

Hong Kong, April 11, 2005
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the activities of its subsidiaries and a jointly controlled
entity are set out in notes 35 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers were less than
30% of the Group’s total sales and purchases for the year, respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2004 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 16 of the annual report and the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and propose the net profit for the year be retained.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group continued to expand and upgrade its production facilities for bulk drug products and
finished drug products. Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the issued share capital and share options of the Company are set out in notes 25 and 26 to

the financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive directors:

Cai Dong Chen, Chairman

Ding Er Gang
Feng Zhen Ying

Wei Fu Min

Yue Jin

Ji Jian Ming (appointed on February 28, 2005)
Yao Shi An (appointed on February 28, 2005)
Qu Ji Guang (resigned on September 17, 2004)
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DIRECTORS® REPORT
(cont’d)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS - continued

Non-executive director:

Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo (re-designated on September 24, 2004)
Independent non-executive directors:

Huo Zhen Xing

Qi Mou Jia
Guo Shi Chang (appointed on February 5, 2004)
Chan Siu Keung, Leonard (appointed on September 24, 2004)

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Article of Association, the new directors, Messrs. Ji Jian Ming, Yao
Shi An and Chan Siu Keung, Leonard retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs. Cai Dong Chen, Ding Er Gang,
Wei Fu Min and Qi Mou Jia retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
CAI Dong Chen

Mr. CAI, aged 51, is the Chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the Company in
1998. He is also the Chairman of Shijiazhuang Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (**SPG’’), the Company’s
ultimate holding company. Mr. Cai graduated from Hebei Pharmaceutical Finance College in the People’s Republic
of China (the ‘“PRC’’) and joined SPG in 1972. Mr. Cai has over thirty years of technical and management
experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

DING Er Gang

Mr. Ding, aged 44, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 1997. He graduated from Hebei
College of Economics in the PRC and has over fifteen years of management experience in the pharmaceutical
industry.

FENG Zhen Ying

Mr. Feng, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 2003. He graduated from Hebei
Chemical College in the PRC and has over twenty years of technical and management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry.

WEI Fu Min

Mr. Wei, aged 58, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 1994. He graduated from Tianjin
Industrial College in the PRC and has over thirty years of technical and management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry.




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(cont’d)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued
YUE Jin

Mr. Yue, aged 41, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 2001. He graduated from Hebei
University in the PRC and has over fifteen years of technical and management experience in the pharmaceutical
industry.

YAO Shi An

Mr. Yao, aged 55, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated from Beijing
Technology and Business University in the PRC and has over thirty years of technical and management experience
in the pharmaceutical industry.

JI Jian Ming

Mr. Ji, aged 42, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated from Hebei
University in the PRC and has more than twenty years of technical and management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry.

LEE Ka Sze, Carmelo

Mr. Lee, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 1996 and
re-designated as a non-executive director in 2004. He is a solicitor by profession and is a partner of a law firm in
Hong Kong.

HUO Zhen Xing

Mr. Huo, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 1994. He was the
former head of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Hebei Province branch and Shijiazhuang sub-branch.

QI Mou Jia

Mr. Qi, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 1996. He was the
former director of State Drug Administration of China (‘*SDA”’, now known as State Food and Drug Administration
of China). He was the deputy chairman and chairman of SDA in 1978 and 1982-1994 respectively.

GUO Shi Chang

Mr. Guo, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004. He was the
Vice Governor of Hebei Provincial People’s Government, the PRC from 1993 to 2002.

CHAN Siu Keung, Leonard

Mr. Chan, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004. He is a
qualified accountant and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from York University, Ontario, Canada and has extensive experience in finance and
investment.




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(cont’d)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2004, the interests of the directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (*‘SFO’’)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ‘‘Stock
Exchange’’) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (‘‘Model
code’’) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “‘Listing Rules”’),

were as follows:

Number of issued Percentage of the issued
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held share capital of the Company
Mr. Cai Dong Chen Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.13%

Other than as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2004, none of the directors nor their associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, a firm of solicitors of which Mr. Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo is a partner, rendered professional

services to the Group for which it received normal remuneration.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at December 31, 2004, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the share
capital of the Company.

10




DIRECTORS® REPORT

(cont’d)
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER - continued
Number of ordinary
Name of shares of the Percentage of
substantial shareholder Capacity Company held  issued share capital
SPG Beneficial owner and 783,316,161 50.93%
controlled corporation (Note)
Templeton Investment Investment Manager 77,078,246 5.01%

Counsel, LLC

Note: In respect of the 783,316,161 shares, 748,436,399 shares are held by SPG, 25,000,000 shares are held by Mr. Ding Er
Gang, an executive director of the Company, as trustee for SPG and 9,879,762 shares are held by China Charmaine
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at December 31, 2004 or any other interests representing 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company as at December 31, 2004,

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the discloseable connected transactions during the year are set out in note 34 (I) to the financial
statements. In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, those transactions were entered into by the
Group:

(1)  in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned,

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such transactions or on terms no less favourable
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(iv) within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.
In addition, the Group entered into following connected transactions during the year:

{(a) On December 31, 2004, Shijiazhuang Pharma Group Zhonghe Pharmaceutical (Neimenggu) Co., Limited
(*‘Neimenggu Zhonghe’’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a purchase agreement
with Hebei Hong Yuan Chemical Co., Limited (‘‘Hong Yuan’’), a 75% subsidiary of SPG, whereby
Neimenggu Zhonghe shall purchase chemical products as raw materials for the production of amoxicillin from
Hong Yuan for the period from January [, 2005 to December 31, 2007.

(b) On December 31, 2004, Shijiazhuang Pharma Group Zhongrun Pharmaceutical (Neimenggu) Co., Limited
(‘*Neimenggu Zhongrun’’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a purchase agreement
with Shijiazhuang Pharma Group Neimenggu Zhongkang Sugar Co., Limited (‘*Zhongkang Sugar’’), a 45%
associate of SPG, whereby Neimenggu Zhongrun shall purchase liquid glucose and corn syrup as raw materials
for the production of penicillin products from Zhongkang Sugar for the period from January 1, 2005 to
December 31, 2007.

11




DIRECTORS® REPORT
(cont’d)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - continued

(c) \On December 31, 2004, Shijiazhuang Pharma Group Hebei Zhongrun Pharmaceutical Co., Limited (‘‘Hebei
Zhongrun’’), Weisheng Pharmaceutical (Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd. (‘‘Weisheng’’) and Shijiazhuang Pharma
Group Hebei Zhongnuo Pharmaceutical Co., Limited (‘‘Hebei Zhongnuo’’), all being subsidiaries of the
Company, entered into separate agency agreements with Shijiazhuang Pharma Group Import and Export
Trading Co., Ltd. (‘*SPG Import and Export Co.””), a wholly owned subsidiary of SPG, respectively, whereby
Hebei Zhongrun, Weisheng and Hebei Zhongnuo will appoint SPG Import and Export Co. to act as its agent in
securing overseas sales orders for the Group. The commission to be paid by each of Hebei Zhongrun,
Weisheng and Hebei Zhongnuo to SPG Import and Export Co. is up to 4% of the sales amount. The term of

each of the agency agreement is three years from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2007.

The above connected transactions and their proposed annual caps were subsequently approved by an ordinary
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on February 21, 2005. These transactions have
commenced in 2005 and details of which were disclosed in a press announcement dated December 31, 2004 and a

circular dated January 24, 2005.
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities.
DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to three bank loan agreements, it will be an event of default under each of these loan agreements if SPG
owns less than 40% of the issued share capital of the Company. The outstanding principal of these bank loans at
December 31, 2004 was HK$675,020,000 and the last instalment repayment is due in December 2008.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other events which are required to be disclosed by the Company under rule
13.18 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied throughout the year ended December 31, 2004 with the
Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company has an audit committee
consisting of one non-executive director and two independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
committee meets regularly with the external auditors and management to review the interim and yearly financial

statements of the Group.

Each of the non-executive director and independent non-executive directors of the Company has entered into a

service contract with the Company on December 31, 2004 for a term of two years.
The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct

regarding securities transactions by the directors. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company
confirmed that all directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

12




DIRECTORS® REPORT
(cont’d)

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, as at
the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cai Dong Chen

Chairman

Hong Kong, April 11, 2005

13




AUDITORS’ REPORT

Deloitte.
&)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED HEHZ &£ @GR 7
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 16 to 54 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.
Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. [t also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately

disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

14



AUDITORS® REPORT
(cont’d)

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group

as at December 31, 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, April 11, 2005




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2004

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses
Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity

Profit before taxation

Income tax expenses

Profit before minority interests

Minority interests
Net profit for the year
Dividends

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

NOTES

4

10

2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$°'000
2,450,649 2,478,426

(1,819,804) (1,553,466)
630,845 924,960
14,677 9,522
(131,453) (94,529)
(230,004) (200,193)
(10,948) (21,471)
273,117 618,289
(27,959) (25,361)
4,008 7,610
249,166 600,538
(3,774) (94,978)
245,392 505,560
(381 (1,391)
245,011 504,169
- 215,338

HK15.93 cents

HK33.27 cents

N/A

HK32.83 cents




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At December 31, 2004

NOTES 2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 3,012,604 1,739,164
Intangible assets 14 69,950 60,431
Goodwill 15 55,764 58,947
Interest in a jointly controlled entity 16 24,654 21,235
Loan receivable 17 655 1,450
Pledged bank deposits 20 9,416 48,494
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 47,305 91,570
3,220,348 2,021,291
Current assets
Inventories 18 452,855 291,854
Trade and other receivables 19 413,629 438,572
Bills receivable 90,331 91,477
Loan receivable 17 795 795
Trade receivables due from related companies 34 3,854 2,529
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 34 16,806 12,129
Pledged bank deposits 20 7,282 29,938
Bank balances and cash 501,346 473,199
1,486,898 1,340,493
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 861,340 481,091
Bills payable 388,040 299,345
Amounts due to related companies 34 58,423 26,111
Trade payable due to a jointly controlled entity 34 4,414 160
Taxation payable 3,892 17,169
Bank loans — due within one year 22 249,813 161,299
1,565,922 985,175
Net current (liabilities) assets (79,024) 355,318
Total assets less current liabilities 3,141,324 2,376,609
Minority interests 10,058 8,272
Non-current liabilities
Loans from ultimate holding company 23 54,818 101,590
Bank loans — due after one year 22 817,409 145,050
872,227 246,640
2,259,039 2,121,697

17



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(cont’d)
At December 31, 2004
NOTES 2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK3'000
Capital and reserves

Share capital 25 153,812 153,812
Reserves 2,105,227 1,967,885
2,259,039 2,121,697

The financial statements on pages 16 to 54 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

April 11, 2005 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cai Dong Chen Ding Er Gang
Director Director
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BALANCE SHEET

At December 31, 2004

NOTES 2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 1,708 2,323
Investments in subsidiaries 12 1,161,737 895,244
Amounts due from subsidiaries 13 925,128 780,607
2,088,573 1,678,174
Current assets
Other receivables 5,629 5,374
Bank balances and cash 99,803 30,864
105,432 36,238
Current liabilities
Other payables 11,700 8,510
Amount due to ultimate holding company 34 54,141 26,111
Amount due to a subsidiary 24 8,323 -
Bank loans — due within one year 22 185,020 49,980
259,184 84,601
Net current liabilities (153,752) (48,363)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,934,821 1,629,811
Non-current liability
Bank loans - due after one year 22 490,000 145,050
1,444,821 1,484,761
Capital and reserves
Share capital 25 153,812 153,812
Reserves 27 1,291,009 1,330,949
1,444,821 1,484,761

Cai Dong Chen

Director

Ding Er Gang

Director

10




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuITyY

For the year ended December 31, 2004

Non-
Share Share Goodwill ~ Translation distributable Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total
HKS$°000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(Note 25)
THE GROUP
At January 1, 2003 150,221 1,098,125 (167,254) 2,692 137,675 571,678 1,793,137
Exercise of share options 3,591 18,622 - - - - 22,213
Share issue expenses - (20) - - - - (20)
Share of non-distributable
reserves of a jointly
controlled entity - ~ - - 2,988 (2,988) -
Transfers, net of
minority interests” share - - - - 53,447 (53,447) -
Net profit for the year - ~ - - - 504,169 504,169
Dividends paid - - - - - (197,302) (197,802)
At December 31, 2003 153,812 1,116,727 (167,254) 2,692 194,110 821,610 2,121,697
Share of non-distributable
reserves of a jointly
controlled entity - - - - 865 (865) ~
Transfers, net of
minority interests’ share - - - - 81,359 (81,359) -
Net profit for the year - - - - - 245,011 245,011
Dividends paid - - - - - (107,669) (107,669)
At December 31, 2004 153,812 1,116,727 (167,254) 2,692 276,334 876,728 2,259,039
Attributed to:
~ The Company
and subsidiaries 153,812 1,116,727 (160,130) 2,585 268,976 855,485 2,237,455
— Jointly controlled
entity - - (7,124) 107 7,358 21,243 21,584
153,812 1,116,727 (167,254) 2,692 276,334 876,728 2,259,039
Note: The non-distributable reserves represent statutory reserves appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Company’s

subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the ‘“PRC’’) and jointly controlled entity under the PRC laws and

regulations.

Py



CoNSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2004

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit from operations
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of intangible assets
Amortisation of goodwill
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables

Decrease in bills receivable

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables due from related companies

Increase in amount due from a jointly controlled entity
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in bills payable

Increase in amounts due to related companies

Increase in trade payable due to a jointly controlled entity

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Interest paid

The PRC income tax paid, net of tax refunds
Dividends paid to minority sharcholders

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits
Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of cash
and cash equivalents acquired)
Purchase of technical know-how
Purchase of utility rights
Repayment of loan receivable

Capital contributed by minority shareholders of a subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NOTE

28

2004 2003
HKS$000 HKS$’'000
273,117 618,289
(2,454) (1,589)
168,236 129,024
12,405 13,770
- 10,878
3,183 3,168
5,553 9,030
460,040 782,570
(161,001) (10,739)
24,943 (10,989)
1,146 29,235
(1,325) 88,517
(4,677) (2,644)
103,313 11,608
88,695 257,717
32,312 26,111
4,254 -
547,700 1,171,386
2,454 1,589
(31,298) (25,361)
(16,462) (92,842)
(561) (2,928)
501,833 1,051,844
(1,081,867) (323,602)
(47,305) (91,570)
61,734 (78,432)
- (17,211)
(9,760) (1,122)
(12,164) (467)
795 795
1,966 -
6,483 4,083

(1,080,118)

(507,526)




CONSOLIDATED CaAasH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2004

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid

(Repayment to) loan from ultimate holding company

Proceeds from issue of shares for cash, net of expenses

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD,

represented by bank balances and cash

(cont’d)

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$°000
959,620 301,479
(198,747) (622,853)
(107,669) (197,802)
(46,772) 101,590
- 22,193
606,432 (395,393)
28,147 148,925
473,199 324,274
501,346 473,199




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2004

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company is a listed public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ‘‘Stock Exchange’”).

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Shijiazhuang Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited
(“*SPG’’), a state-owned enterprise established under the laws of The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC’’). SPG, together with the companies under its control, other than members of the Group, will
hereinafter be referred to as the ‘“‘SPG Group’’.

The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products.

Although the Group had net current liabilities of HK$79,024,000 as at December 31, 2004, the directors are
satisfied and believe that with the existing resources and bank facilities available to the Group as disclosed in
note 36, the Group has sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘“HKICPA’’) issued a number of new or
revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter
collectively referred to as ‘‘new HKFRSs’’) which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2005. The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Management is assessing, but has not yet determined, the potential impact of these new HKFRSs will have on
its financial position and results of operations. These new HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to
how the results and financial position are presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as
follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to December 31 each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

[alo}




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Goodwill — centinued

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to January 1, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged
to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or at such time as the goodwill is
determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after January 1, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over its estimated useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented
separately in the balance sheet.

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payrnent have been
established.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an
interest are referred to as a jointly controlled entity.

The Group’s interests in a jointly controlled entity are included in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of the net assets of the relevant jointly controlled entity less any identified impairment loss.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition results of the jointly controlled entity is included in the consolidated

income statement.
Property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress is stated at cost which includes all construction costs and other direct costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised attributable to such projects. Construction in progress is not depreciated until
completion of construction. Costs on completed construction works are transferred to the relevant category of
property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Property, plant and equipment — continued
Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment

other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives, and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings in the PRC 3.3% - 5%
Plant and machinery 5% — 10%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The cost of land use rights is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the rights.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

The cost of technical know-how is measured initially at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life.

The cost of rights to use utilities is measured initially at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a clearly defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it incurred.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted

average method.
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions or at the contracted settlement rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are included in net profit or loss for the year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year as quoted by the People’s Bank of China, the PRC. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is
disposed of.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years, and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit scheme are charged as
an expense as they fall due.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the relevant leases.

TURNOVYER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, and is stated net of value-added tax and sales returns during the year.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has determined business segments are
its primary reporting format and geographical segments are its secondary reporting format.

Business segments
The Group reports its primary segment information by products which are bulk drugs, including vitamin C

series, penicillin series and cephalosporin series, finished drugs and others. Segment information about these
progducts is presented below:




4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Business segments — continued

2004
Bulk Drugs
Vitamin C Penicillin  Cephalosporin Finished
series series series Drugs Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK3'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK3'000 HKS$'000
TURNOVER
External sales 626,124 360,782 504,670 947,785 11,288 - 2,450,649
Inter-segment sales - 184,779 90,872 - - (275,651) -
TOTAL TURNOVER 626,124 545,561 595,542 947,785 11,288 (275,651) 2,450,649

SEGMENT RESULT 189,694

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

5,307 34,625 67,965

(4,326)

Unallocated corporate

eXpenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of profit of a jointly

controlled entity

Profit before taxation

Income tax expenses

Profit before minority interests

Minority interests

Net profit for the year

4,008

293,265

(20,148)

273,117
(27,959)

4,008

249,166
(3,774)

245,392
(381)

245,011




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Business segments — continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and segment liabilities, analysed by

products:
2004
Bulk Drugs
Vitamin C Penicillin  Cephalosporin Finished
series series series Drugs Others  Consolidated
HK3$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ASSETS
Segment assets 1,241,475 1,347,706 991,293 806,552 188,427 4,575,453
Interest in a jointly controlled entity 24,654 24,654
Unallocated corporate assets 107,139
Consolidated total assets 4,707,246
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 280,761 249,335 238,228 511,793 24,970 1,305,087
Unallocated corporate liabilities 1,133,062
Consolidated total liabilities 2,438,149
Bulk Drugs
Vitamin C Penicillin  Cephalosporin Finished
series series series Drugs Others Corporate  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK3°000 HKS§'000 HK$'000
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure 426,620 660,978 230,017 85,929 72,062 30 1,475,636
Depreciation and

amortisation 4237 48,617 67,811 22,804 1,570 645 183,824

Q9



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Business segments — continued
2003
Bulk Drugs
Vitamin C Penicillin Cephalosporin Finished
series series series Drugs Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS§'000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
TURNOVER
External sales 684,139 548,955 455,948 786,164 3,220 - 2,478,426
Inter-segment sales - 193,327 84,835 - - (278,162) -
TOTAL TURNOVER 684,139 742,282 540,783 786,164 3,220 (278,162) 2,478,426
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
SEGMENT RESULT 349,271 118,011 47,987 124,033 (3,677) 635,625
Unallocated corporate
expenses (17,336)
Profit from operations 618,289
Finance costs (25,361)
Share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity 7,610 7,610
Profit before taxation 600,538
Income tax expenses (94,978)
Profit before minority interests 505,560
Minority interests (1,381)
Net profit for the year 504,169

-~



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Business segments — continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and segment liabilities, analysed by

products:
2003
Bulk Drugs
Vitamin C Penicillin  Cephalosporin Finished
series series series Drugs Others  Consolidated
HKS 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
ASSETS
Segment assets 771,996 610,855 801,229 525,243 71,898 2,781,221
Interest in a jointly controlled entity 21,235 21,235
Unallocated corporate assets 559,328
Consolidated total assets 3,361,784
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 105,829 285,236 263,185 128,432 6,572 789,254
Unallocated corporate liabilities 442,561
Consolidated total liabilities 1,231,815
Bulk Drugs
Vitamin C Penicillin  Cephalosporin Finished
series series series Drugs Others Corporate  Consclidated
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HKS$'000
OTHER INFORMATION
Capitaf expenditure 213,826 28,529 32,170 43,148 5,488 2,030 325,191
Depreciation and
amortisation 27,295 43,087 53,955 20,345 859 421 145,962

Impairment of
intangible assets ~ - 10,878 ~ - - 10,878




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, the following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales
by geographical market:

Turnover

2004 2003

HKS$’000 HK$'000

The PRC 1,793,805 1,801,751
Asia other than the PRC 268,898 278,619
Europe 188,396 178,656
America 171,874 130,881
Others 27,676 88,519
2,450,649 2,478,426

Analysis of carrying amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure is not presented as over 90% of
amounts involved are located in the PRC.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

2004 2003
HKS$’000 HKE'000
Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Staff costs including directors’ remuneration 189,938 170,555
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 36,470 27,317
Total staff costs 226,408 197,872
Amortisation (included in administrative expenses) of:
— intangible assets 12,405 13,770
— goodwill 3,183 3,168
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment 168,236 129,024
Total depreciation and amortisation 183,824 145,962
Auditors’ remuneration 1,480 1,350
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,553 9,030
Research and development expenses 4,501 1,870
Impairment of intangible assets (included in
other operating expenses) - 10,878

and after crediting:

Bank interest income 2,454 1,589




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
FINANCE COSTS
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$000
Bank loan arrangement fee 1,364 333
Interest on:
~ bank loans wholly repayable within five years 13,937 17,853
— other loans from connected parties wholly repayable
within five years (note 34 (1)) 3,283 980
~ bills receivable discounted without recourse 12,714 6,195
Total borrowing costs 31,298 25,361
Less: interest capitalised in construction in progress (3,339) -
27,959 25,361

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by

applying a capitalisation rate of 2.6% to expenditure on qualifying assets.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$'000
DIRECTORS
Directors’ fees:
Executive 300 380
Non-executive 60 -
Independent non-executive 420 360
780 740
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries and other benefits 6,897 4,520
Performance related incentive payments (note) 2,153 2,755
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 243 24
10,073 8,039

S



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2004

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS - continued

The directors’ emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HKS$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

2004
Number of
directors

e

(cont’d)

2003
Number of
directors

—_ = —

Note: Performance related incentive payment is determined by management at discretion.

EMPLOYEES

Of the five highest paid individuals in the Group, four (2003: four) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out above. The emolument of the highest paid individual and the four highest paid

directors is as follow:

Fees

Salaries and other benefits

Performance related incentive payments
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Emolument of the remaining highest paid individual
was within the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$’000
180 240
7,175 5,074
2,020 2,983
262 36
9,637 8,333
2004 2003

No. of No. of
individuals individuals
1 —

- 1

1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five (2003: five) highest paid individuals,

including directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

None of the directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

~ A




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
INCOME TAX EXPENSES
2004 2003
HKS$'000 HK$000
The charge comprises:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
— current year 36,711 102,862
— overprovision in prior years (11,393) (3,249)
— tax credits/refund (22,133) (5,697)
Taxation attributable to the Company and its subsidiaries 3,185 93,916
Share of taxation of a jointly controlied entity 589 1,062
3,774 94,978

No Hong Kong Profits Tax is payable by the Company nor its Hong Kong subsidiaries since they had no
assessable profit for the years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the prevailing rate in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries and its
jointly controlled entity are entitled to exemption and relief from PRC income tax starting from their initial
profit-making years.

In addition, pursuant to approvals granted by the relevant tax authorities, certain of the Group’s subsidiaries

were granted tax credits/refund which are mainly derived from the following activities:

A subsidiary of the Company was entitled to a tax refund on the basis that such subsidiary has, instead of
making distributions to its foreign shareholders, re-invested certain distributable reserves as capital
contribution to a subsidiary newly set up in the PRC.

Tax credits resulted from the purchase of plant and equipment manufactured in the PRC by certain subsidiaries
of the Group. The tax credits are calculated with reference to 40% of the cost of the qualifying plant and
equipment approved by the relevant tax authorities. Such credits can be used to offset against current and
future tax charges of the subsidiaries, subject to certain conditions as specified in each approval from the
relevant tax authorities.

The taxation charge for the year represents provision for income tax which has taken into account of the

above-mentioned tax incentives.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

INCOME TAX EXPENSES - continued

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the consolidated income statement as follows:

2004 2003

HKS$’'000 HKS 000

Profit before taxation 249,166 600,538
Tax at the average income tax rate of 21.5% (2003 22.1%) 53,649 132,855
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (394) (1,859)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 13,632 11,930
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 23 119
Effect of tax exemption and relief granted to PRC subsidiaries (29,117) (38,357)

Effect of tax exemption and relief granted to

a jointly controlled entity (493) (764)
Tax credits/refund granted to PRC subsidiaries (22,133) (5,697)
Overprovision in respect of prior years (11,393) (3,249)
Tax charge for the year 3,774 94,978
Note: The average income tax for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 represent the weighted average tax rate

of the operations in different regions and industries in the PRC on the basis of the relative amounts of net profit
before taxation and the relevant statutory rates.

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation for the year or at the balance sheet date.

DIVIDENDS
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
Interim dividend paid HK7.0 cents per share - 107,669
Final dividend proposed HK7.0 cents per share - 107,669
- 215,338

No dividend was proposed by the directors for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2004 is based on the net profit for
the year of HK$245,011,000 and the 1,538,124,661 shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share was presented for the year ended December 31, 2004 as there was no potential

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2003 was based on the

following data:

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect of share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of diluted earnings per share

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2003

HK$504,169,000

1,515,192,387

20,501,401

1,535,693,788

Furniture,

Land use fixtures

rights in Buiidings Plant and and office Motor  Construction

the PRC  inthe PRC  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
THE GROUP
COST
At January 1, 2004 113,036 350,889 1,414,128 4,311 11,233 359,820 2,253,417
Additions 4,765 6,937 63,326 6,476 3,199 1,369,009 1,453,712
Transfers 2,181 148,849 735,766 10 - (886,806) -
Disposals - (4,410) (15,0000 (18) (2,641) - (22,069)
At December 31, 2004 119,982 502,265 2,198,220 10,779 11,791 842,023 3,685,060
DEPRECIATION AND

AMORTISATION

At January 1, 2004 10,080 49,800 446,327 1,109 6,937 - 514,253
Provided for the year 5,615 19,587 139,766 1,396 1,872 - 168,236
Eliminated on disposals - (489) (8,625) (13) (906) - (10,033)
At December 31, 2004 15,695 68,398 577,468 2,492 7,903 - 672,456
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2004 104,287 433,367 1,620,752 8,287 3,888 842,023 3,012,604
At December 31, 2003 102,956 301,089 967,801 3,202 4,296 359,820 1,739,164
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

At December 31, 2004, borrowing cost of HK$3,339,000 (2003: Nil) was capitalized and included in

construction in progress.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s land use rights and buildings in the PRC are held under medium-term

leases.

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
equipment vehieles Total
HK$'000 HK§’000 HK$°000
THE COMPANY
COST
At January 1, 2004 2,192 1,005 3,197
Additions 30 - 30
At December 31, 2004 2,222 1,005 3,227
DEPRECIATION
At January 1, 2004 221 653 874
Provided for the year 444 201 645
At December 31, 2004 665 854 1,519
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2004 1,557 151 1,708
At December 31, 2003 1,971 352 2,323
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$'000
Unlisted investment, at cost 1,161,737 895,244

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2004 are set out in note 35.
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the

directors, the amounts will not be repayable within twelve months from the balance sheet date and are
therefore shown in the balance sheet as non-current.




NOoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Technical Development Utility

know-how costs rights Total

HK$000 HK 3’000 HK$000 HK§ 000

COST
At January 1, 2004 55,299 20,906 56,659 132,864
Additions 9,760 - 12,164 21,924
At December 31, 2004 65,059 20,906 68,823 154,788
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At January 1, 2004 41,026 8,007 23,400 72,433
Provided for the year 5,290 842 6,273 12,405
At December 31, 2004 46,316 8,849 29,673 84,838
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2004 18,743 12,057 39,150 69,950
At December 31, 2003 14,273 12,899 33,259 60,431

The cost of technical know-how is amortised on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life of ten years.

Development costs are deferred and amortised, using the straight-line method, over a period of three to five
years from date of commencement of commercial operation.

The cost of rights to use utilities is amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.

GOODWILL

HKS$000
COST
At January 1, 2004 and December 31, 2004 63,661
AMORTISATION
At January 1, 2004 4,714
Provided for the year 3,183
At December 31, 2004 7,897
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2004 55,764

At December 31, 2003 58,947

Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 20 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK3’000 HKS$ 000
Share of net assets 24,654 21,235

At December 31, 2004, the Group held 50% of the registered capital of Hebei Huarong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. ("Huarong"), which is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company established in the PRC to manufacture
and sell vitamin B12 products.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

The loan is unsecured, carries interest at 6.435% per annum and is repayable as follows:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
Within one year 795 795
Between one to two years 655 795
Between two to five years - 655
1,450 2,245
Less: Amount receivable within one year
shown under current assets (795) (795)
Amount receivable after one year 655 1,450
INVENTORIES
THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK3$’000 HKS$’000
Raw materials 84,049 62,226
Work in progress 175,030 84,051
Finished goods 193,776 145,577
452,855 291,854

At the balance sheet date, all inventories are carried at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group has a policy of allowing a credit period from 30 days to 90 days to its trade customers. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance sheet date:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HKS§'000
0 to 90 days 334,482 325,490
91 to 180 days 20,719 24,222
181 to 365 days 1,952 629
357,153 350,341
Other receivables 56,476 83,231
413,629 438,572

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at December 31, 2004 included in pledged bank deposits were deposits pledged for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment of HK$9,416,000 (2003: HK$48,494,000), which were classified in the balance sheet as
non-current. The remaining balance of HK$7,282,000 (2003: HK$29,938,000) represents deposits pledged by
the Group to banks to secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and were classified as current
assets.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HKS 000
0 to 90 days 313,984 260,909
91 to 180 days 42,197 27,572
181 to 365 days 18,727 18,075
More than 365 days 18,358 8,216
393,266 314,772
Other payables 468,074 166,319

861,340 481,091
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

BANK LOANS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$°000 HK$'000
Bank loans 1,067,222 306,349 675,020 195,030
Analysed as:
Secured 25,020 75,030 25,020 75,030
Unsecured 1,042,202 231,319 650,000 120,000
1,067,222 306,349 675,020 195,030
The bank loans are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand 249,813 161,299 185,020 49,980
Between one to two years 487,409 145,050 160,000 145,050
Between two to five years 330,000 - 330,000 -
1,067,222 306,349 675,020 195,030
Less: Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities (249,813) (161,299) (185,020) (49,980)
Amount due after one year 817,409 145,050 490,000 145,050
LOANS FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The loans are unsecured and are analysed as follows:
THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
Loans from SPG:
— interest bearing at prevailing market rate 46,773 93,545
~ interest-free 8,045 8,045
54,818 101,590

SPG agrees not to demand repayment of the above loans within twelve months from the balance sheet date.

As a result, the loans are classified as non-current liabilities.

AMOUNT DUE TO A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2004

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:
At December 31, 2003 and 2004

Issued and fully paid:
— balance at January 1, 2003

— exercise of share options (note)

At December 31, 2003 and 2004

(cont’d)

Number of
shares Value
HK3'000
3,000,000,000 300,000
1,502,212,661 150,221
35,912,000 3,591
1,538,124,661 153,812

Note: During the year ended December 31, 2003, 2,608,000, 15,000,000 and 18,304,000 shares options were exercised
at a subscription price of HK$0.67, HK$0.62 and HK$0.61 per share, respectively, resulting in the issue of

35,912,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with

other shares in issue.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Old Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme adopted on May 27, 1994 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees (the ‘‘Old Scheme’’) has expired on May 26, 2004.

No options were granted under the Old Scheme during the year ended December 31, 2003 or prior to its expiry
during the year ended December 31, 2004. All options granted under the Old Scheme were fully exercised or

lapsed during the year ended December 31, 2003.

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share option held by employees (including directors)
under the Old Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year ended December 31, 2003:

_ Exercise
Date of grant Exercisable period price
HK$

2.19.2000 8.20.2000 to 8.19.2003 0.67
3.27.2000 9.28.2000 to 9.27.2003 0.62
8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 0.61

Number Number

of shares Exercised Lapsed of shares
outstanding during during  outstanding
at 1.1.2003 the year the year  at 12.31.2003
7,826,000 (2,608,000) (5,218,000) -
20,000,000 (15,000,000) (5,000,000) -
24,304,000 (18,304,000) (6,000,000) -
52,130,000 (35,912,000)  (16,218,000) -




26.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

SHARE OPTIONS - continued
The Old Scheme — continued

The weighted average closing price of the shares on the dates on which the share options were exercised
during the year ended December 31, 2003 was HK$2.91.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options held by directors (and other key
management) under the Old Scheme included in the above table:

Number Number

of shares Exercised Lapsed of shares

Exercise outstanding during during outstanding

Date of grant Exercisable period price at 1.1.2003 the year the year  at 12.31.2003

HK$

2.19.2000 8.20.2000 to 8.19.2003 0.67 3,914,000 (2,608,000) (1,306,000) -
3.27.2000 9.28.2000 to 9.27.2003 0.62 20,000,000 (15,000,000) (5,000,000) -
8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 0.61 24,304,000 (18,304,000) (6,000,000) -

48,218,000  (35,912,000)  (12,306,000) -

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet
until such time as the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of
the value of options granted in the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the
exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which have lapsed or cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted frorn the register of
outstanding options.

The New Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on July 6,
2004, the board of directors approved and adopted the new share option scheme (the ‘‘New Scheme’”).

The New Scheme is for the purpose of providing incentive to directors (or any persons proposed to be
appointed as such, whether executive or non-executive) and employees (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group; eligible business consultants, professionals and other advisers who have rendered
service or will render service to the Group as determined by the board of directors.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum entitlement for any one participant, subject to prior approval from the Company’s shareholders with
such participant and such participant’s associates abstaining from voting, is that the total number of shares
issued ot to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant in any twelve-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.



26.

27.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

SHARE OPTIONS - continued
The New Scheme — continued

Any grant of options to a participant who is a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (all within
the meaning as ascribed under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
‘“‘Listing Rules’”)) of the Company or their respective associates must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors (excluding the independent non-executive director who is the grantee). Where the
granting of options to a participant who is an independent non-executive director or substantial shareholder
would result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such participant in the twelve-month period up to and including the date of such grant
exceed 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue or have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such proposed grant must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 30 days from the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.
The subscription price is determined by the board of directors and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) and
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. Options granted
are exercisable for a period to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee and in any event such
period shall expire not later than 10 years from the date of grant of options.

No option has been granted or agreed to be granted under the New Scheme since its adoption.
RESERVES

Share Accumulated

premium profits Total

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THE COMPANY
At January 1, 2003 1,098,125 164,439 1,262,564
Exercise of share options 18,622 - 18,622
Share issue expenses (20) - (20)
Net profit for the year - 247,585 247,585
Dividends paid - (197,802) (197,802)
At December 31, 2003 1,116,727 214,222 1,330,949
Net profit for the year ~ 67,729 67,729
Dividend paid - (107,669) (107,669)
At December 31, 2004 1,116,727 174,282 {,291,009

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at December 31, 2004 represent its
accumulated profits of HK$174,282,000 (2003: HK$214,222,000).

AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On February 9, 2003, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Zhonggi Pharmaceutical
Technology (Shijiazhuang) Company Limited. Details of this acquisition were set out in note 34.

The net assets of the subsidiary acquired were as follows:

2003
HK3'000
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 12,290
Other receivables 6,001
Inventories 6,179
Bank balances and cash 1,858
Other payables (9,078)
17,250
Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 1,819
19,069
Satisfied by:
Cash paid on acquisition 17,250
Directly attributable expenses paid on acquisition 1,819
19,069
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in connection with the acquisition of a subsidiary:
2003
HKS$'000
Bank balances and cash acquired 1,858
Cash paid on acquisition (19,069)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in connection
with the acquisition of a subsidiary (17,211)

The subsidiary acquired during the year ended December 31, 2003 did not have a material contribution to the
net cash flows and results of the Group.

A -
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(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
THE GROUP
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$'000
Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease
during the year in respect of land and buildings 2,855 2,922

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$’600 HKS$'000
Within one year 4,085 2,240 1,291 836
In the second to fifth year inclusive 4,123 2,219 473 1,300
Over five years 1,104 684 - -
9,312 5,143 1,764 2,136

Operating lease payments represent payable by the Group for certain of its office and factory properties.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of three years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HKS$°000 HK$°000
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for
in the financial statements in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment 339,758 233,474

At the balance sheet date, the Company had capital commitments in respect of investment in a subsidiary as
follows:

THE COMPANY

2004 2003
HK$'000 HKS§'000
Capital investment in respect of capital contribution 88,835 130,000

Capital investment authorised but not contracted for - 250,000
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(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2004, the Company had given a corporate guarantee of HKS$25,820,000 (2003:
HK$7,800,000) to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group’s pledge of bank deposits are set out in note 20.

At the balance sheet dates, the Company had pledged all the equity interests of its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Weisheng Pharmaceutical (Shijiazhuang) Co., Limited to a bank to secure bank loan granted to the Company.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of the employees’ relevant payroll costs. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the PRC government.

The relevant subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the state retirement schemes in the PRC based
on certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and their
length of service in accordance with the relevant government regulations. The PRC government is responsible
for the pension liability to these retired staff. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. During the year, the contributions made by the PRC
subsidiaries relating to the arrangement were approximately HK$36,153,000 (2003: HK$27,257,000).

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
During the year, the Group had significant transactions and balances with related parties, some of which are
also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the Listing Rules. The significant transactions with these

companies during the year, and balances with them at the balance sheet date, are as follows:

(I) CONNECTED PARTIES

Nature of transactions/ THE GROUP
Name of company balances 2004 2003
HKS’000 HKS'000
SPG Group Sale of finished goods 2,467 5,568
(note a)
Purchase of raw materials 44,338 38,964

(note a)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2004

34. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES - continued

(I) CONNECTED PARTIES - continued

Nature of transactions/
Name of company balances

SPG Group Service charges relating to
administrative, selling, utility,
energy, community,
land use rights and
other supporting services
and facilities (note b)

Rental expenses (note c)
Processing services charges (note d)
Repairing charges (note €)

Income from provision of technology
consultancy services (note e)

Interest expenses on loans from
ultimate holding company (note g)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note h)

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
from the SPG Group (note i)

Guarantee given by the SPG Group
(note j)

Balance due from (to) the
SPG Group at December 31
— trade receivables (note m)
trade payable (note m)
dividend payable
long-term loans (note g)

Nature of transactions/

Name of company balances
SPG Group Balance due to the SPG Group
at December 31
. — dividend payable

AQ

(cont’d)
THE GROUP

2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK3'000
1,349 2,722
1,835 1,375
24,131 33,182
- 37

- 175

3,283 980
- 17,250

8,376 15,328
150,000 150,000
3,854 2,529
(4,282) -
(54,141) (26,111)
(54,818) (101,590)

THE COMPANY

2004
HKS$’000

(54,141)

2003
HKS$'000

(26,111)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES - continued

For the year ended December 31, 2004

(I) RELATED PARTIES, OTHER THAN CONNECTED PARTIES

Name of company

Quyi Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“‘Ouyi’’),
an associate of SPG
(note 1)

Huarong, a jointly
controlled entity of
the Group

Notes:

Nature of transactions/
balances

Sales of finished goods (note a)
Purchase of finished goods (note a)
Service charges relating to
administrative, selling, utility,
energy, community, land use rights
and other supporting services
and facilities (note b)

Rental expenses (note ¢)

Income from provision of technology
consultancy services (note e)

Service charges relating to
a construction project (note €)

Sales of finished goods (note a)
Purchase of raw materials (note a)

Provision of utility services
by the Group (note )

Dividend income

Income from provision of technology
consultancy services (note e)

Balance due from (to)
Huarong at December 31
— dividend receivable
— non-trade receivable (note k)
— trade payable (note m)

(a) The transactions were carried out with reference to the market prices.

(cont’d)
THE GROUP

2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK3'000
2,239 -
92 -
1,589 -
477 -
45 -

748 -
371 -
29,719 37,772
2,307 922
- 6,122

216 122
6,122 6,122
10,684 6,007
(4,414) (160)

(b}  Pursuant to the services agreements entered into between the Group and the SPG Group, the service fees paid by the

Group to the SPG Group for all composite services, other than the provision of utilities, were based on the nature

and actual costs incurred by the SPG Group. For the provision of utilities, the service fees paid were based on the

actual costs of the utilities incurred by the Group plus 2% as the handling charge.

LN




34.

35,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES - continued

(c)

(d)

O

H

()

)

M

@
&)

M

(m)

Rental expenses were paid in accordance with the tenancy agreements entered into by the Group and the SPG Group.

Pursuant to the services agreement entered into by the Group and the SPG Group, the Group paid processing services
fee to the SPG Group based on the actual costs incurred on the services provided by the SPG Group.

The transactions were based on terms agreed by both parties.

The transactions were based on the actual cost of utilities incurred by the Group.

Details of the loans are set out in note 23.

On February 19, 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with SPG and Shijiazhuang Pharmaceutical Group
New Medicine Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG, for the acquisition by the Company of the
entire issued share capital of Zhongqi Pharmaceutical Technology (Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd. The acquisition was
completed in June 2003.

On September 6, 2004, the Group entered into an agreement with Shijiazhuang Municipal Second Pharmaceutical
Factory, an associate of SPG, for the acquisition of property and land for the purpose of manufacture of
pharmaceutical preparation products and bulk pharmaceutical products for a consideration of approximately
HK$5,376,000.

The guarantee was given to a bank to secure a bank loan granted to the Company.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Ouyi was a former subsidiary of SPG and became the associate company of SPG in June 2004. The Group’s
transactions with Ouyi prior to July 1, 2004 were included in the Group’s transactions with the SPG Group as
disclosed above in part (1) Connected Parties whereas the Group’s transactions with Ouyi from July 1, 2004 to

December 31, 2004 were disclosed above as transactions with related parties.

At the balance sheet dates, all amounts aged within one year.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 are as follows:

Nominal value

of issued
Place of and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid share nominal value
registration capital/ of issued share
Name of and Kind of registered capital held Principal
subsidiary operations legal status capital by the Company activity
Directly  Indirectly
% %
China Nutraceuticals Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,000 - 80 Inactive
Limited company
Golden Wing Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$3 100 - Inacuve

gompany

-1
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(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of
subsidiary

Shijiazhuang Pharma
Group Hebei Zhongrun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

M2b.com hk Limited

NBP Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.

Netcom Resources Limited

Shijiazhuang Pharma Group
Zhongrun Pharmaceutical
{Neimenggu) Co., Ltd.

Shijiazhuang Pharma Group
Zhonghe Pharmaceutical

(Neimenggu) Co., Ltd,

Tin Lon Investment Limited

Unity Pacific Limited

Vitam Pharmaceutical
(Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd.

Weisheng Pharmaceutical
{Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and
operations

PRC

British Virgin
Islands

PRC

British Virgin
Islands

PRC

PRC

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

PRC

PRC

Kind of
legal status

Limited liability
cooperative
joint venture
enterprise

Limited liability
company

Foreign investment
enterprises with
limited liability

Limited liability
company

Foreign investment
enterprises with
limited liability

Foreign investment
enterprises with
limited liability

Limited hiability
company

Limited liability
company

Foreign investment
enterprises with
limited liability

Foreign investment
enterprises with
limited liability

Nominal value
of issued

and fully

paid share
capital/
registered
capital

RMB463,490,300

852,500,000

RMB120,000,000

US$1,000

HKS$130,000,000

RMB135,000,000*

HKS2

Ussl

S$5,270,000

US$14,899,000

Percentage of
nominal value
of issued share
capital held
by the Company
Directly  Indirectly
% %

79.04 2017

100 -

100 -

100 -

100 -

100 -

Principal
activity

Manuficture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Inactive

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Investment holding

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

[nvestment holding

lnvestment holding

[nactive

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Nominal vaiue
of issued
Place of and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid share nominal value
registration capital/ of issued share

Name of and Kind of registered capital held Principal

subsidiary operations legal status capital by the Company activity
Directly  Indirectly
% %

Weitai Pharmaceutical PRC Foreign investment RMB59,400,000 100 - Manufacture and sale
(Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd. enterprises with of pharmaceutical products

limited liability

Shijiazhuang Pharma PRC Foreign investment RMB216,000,000 100 ~  Manufacture and sale
Group Zhongnuo enterprises with of pharmaceutical products
Pharmaceutical limited liability
(Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd.

Zhongqi Pharmaceutical PRC Foreign investment RMB18,440,000 100 - Provision of pharmaceutical
Technology (Shijiazhuang) enterprises with research and development
Co., Ltd. limited liability services

Zhongat Pharmaceutical Singapore Private company 582 100 - Provision of pharmaceutical
Technology(S) limited by shares _ research and development
PTE. Ltd. services

Shijiazhuang Pharma PRC Foreign investment RMB50,000,000 100 - Manufacture and sale
Group Hebei Zhongrun enterprises with of pharmaceutical products
Chemical Co., Ltd. limited liability

Hebei Zhongrun PRC Foreign investment RMBS,000,000 - 85  Sewage treatment
Huanbao Co., Ltd. enterprises with

limited liability

Neimenggu PRC Foreign investment RMB18,000,000* 80.42 - Sewage treatment
Zhongxingyuan enterprises with
Sewage Treatment limited liability
Co., Ltd.

* The amount has not been fully paid up as at December 31, 2004.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.




36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2004

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Subsequent to December 31, 2004, the Group obtained long-term bank loans with an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$140 miilion. These bank loans are repayable on maturity in 2006 and 2007.

Subsequent to December 31, 2004, the Company entered into a mandate with a bank as coordinating
arranger and underwriter of a four-year syndicated term loan facility up to a maximum aggregate amount
of HK$600,000,000. Pursuant to the terms of the mandate, the relevant loan facility agreement has to be
entered into by April 30, 2005.

Subsequent to December 31, 2004, the Company has been notified that the Company and an entity with
a name similar to that of a member of the Group are named as, among others, defendants in antitrust
complaints filed in the United States (the ‘‘Antitrust Complaints’’). The Antitrust Complaints have
alleged that certain manufacturers of vitamin C in the PRC, alleged to include the Company and an
entity with a name similar to that of a member of the Group, have since at least December 2001
conspired to control prices and volumes of exports of vitamin C to the United States and elsewhere in
the world and that as such have been in violation of the antitrust laws of the United States and
California state laws. It is alleged in the Antitrust Complaints that the purchasers of vitamin C in the
United States paid more for vitamin C than they would have paid in the absence of the alleged
conspiracy and, therefore, suffered losses. The plaintiffs (purportedly as representatives of classes of
similar plaintiffs) seek treble unspecified damages and other relief. Up to the date of this report, only
one of the Antitrust Complaints has been served on the Company.

The directors of Company are of the view that the allegations in the Antitrust Complaints are without
merit and the directors of the Company intend to contest the claims set out in the Antitrust Complaints
vigorously. The Group has appointed legal advisors to advise them in the legal proceedings and the
outcome of the Antitrust Complaints cannot be estimated with certainty at this stage.

On December 31, 2004, certain members of the Group entered into ongoing connected transactions with
the SPG Group (the ‘‘New Transactions’’). The New Transactions and their proposed annual caps were
disclosed in the Company’s circular to shareholders dated January 24, 2005 and were approved by
sharcholders in an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on February 21, 2005.

&A




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS

TURNOVER

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

FINANCE COSTS

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

OF AN ASSOCIATE

LOSS ON DISSOLUTION
OF A SUBSIDIARY

GAIN ON DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

SHARE OF LOSS OF
AN ASSOCIATE

SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
INCOME TAX EXPENSES

PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY
INTERESTS

MINORITY INTERESTS

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES
MINORITY INTERESTS

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Year ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK3°000 HK$ 000 HEK$’000
995,096 1,168,244 1,625,130 2,478,426 2,450,649
129,720 190,800 297,891 618,289 273,117
(29,843) (27,102) (26,682) (25,361) (27,959)
- (2,032) - - -
(1,081) - - - -
- 4,051 - - -
(290) - - - -
3,779 5,183 7,916 7,610 4,008
102,285 170,900 279,125 600,538 249,166
(21,364) (29,315) (49,550) (94,978) 3,774)
80,921 141,585 229,575 505,560 245,392
(448) (1,579) (1,433) (1,391) (381)
80,473 140,006 228,142 504,169 245,011
Year ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
HK$°000 HK3’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
1,950,203 2,209,932 2,948,797 3,361,624 4,707,246

762,743 878,698 1,145,851 1,231,655 2,438,149

9,050 9,592 9,809 8,272 10,058

1,178,410 1,321,642 1,793,137 2,121,697 2,259,039
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(cont’d)

TURNOVER

HK$ million

3,000 =
2478 2,450 |
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2,000
1,625

1,500 ~T1
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
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HK$ million
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36. HERBRER

(a)

(b

(c)

(d)

RIEZZZMFE+_H=+—H#%  AEEISHERRIR 140,000,000 HITZE T RERITER - &
FRITEFRN_ZFAF A _ZZCFIEE -

R-FZENE+ZA=+—A%  ALAE—FFAMELFAREHBZRTR—ERERS
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KATAE
3 A 2817 BRITRA
Rz REERAEE HEZEAH
HEATIZE Brizit EAMA / AMEX i 53
% %
EREZ (RFHE) HE BREMEES AR 59,400,000 T 100 -
BEAF HERE
LREE TR s BIRHETHEN AR 216,000,0007T 100 -~
(RFH ) HRALAHE BELE
PERIZER g ERFAEN AR 18,440,000 7T 100 -
(agH ) BRAR it e
Zhongqi Pharmaceutical T RHEA  2FET 100 -
Technology(S) PTE. Ltd. BRAFE
hEEEA hE BRETES  AE® 50,000,000 7T 100 -
FELT wELE
BEAT
LA R B EREMEN  AE® 5,000,000 T - 85
BHEHRLHE BELE
REEE PE R T BREDEIS  ARH 18,000,000 T 80.42 -
BkEE HAEPE
BRATF

* BEEN"EZENETR=+-HMEREE -

HH B L AR EAE ERE AR RSB TR EREHERS -
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HERHE
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EATFE
5B/ B B&i7 BRTRE
p-§ il RURRAEE [ElEPA=R 14
HEBAEEE FiiEs HEAL / 2MEE ¢ 5 TEEER
% %
FREETILTENE $E BREETEME AR 463,490,300 T  79.04 20.17 BUERHE
ERLF BB BEES
M2b.com.hk Limited E BHREHEEAT 2,500,000 ET - 90 i
BULES
B Es R HREEES  AE® 120,000,000 T 100 - BUEREE
HRAE wEhE [EWES
Netcom Resources Limited & ERHEFEAT 1,000 X 100 - REER
BLER
FEEETENE I EREFEES 130,000,000 #TT 100 - BIERHE
( REH ) BERAHE WAMZE BUEEL,
AEEE PR g BREFESN AR 135,000,000 7T* 100 - BERHE
(REH )ERATH BERE BEES,
FaRiEERAE T ARETATE 28T 100 - B
Unity Pacific Limited ER BRETAT 1 ET 100 - ped=cediid
BRLES
HeEmE (AxH) HE BIREFEES 5,270,000 ETT 100 - HEE
BHRAH HEhE
WAEE (AFH) FE EREFESN 14,899,000 ETT 100 - BEREE

HRAF HREE WEEL
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35.
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LRE - ZEROERMERTROEE A HEEREER -

REBXHAHE
EatE

ALFR-NANAEERAZTCHEMN  TERMBEERAEKE LB IIERTE (7 &t
g2l BRIZZFWEARZHANEHER -

MEECEZE =+ A=+ —HUEFERBE_SSNE L+ =+—HEEEETEEMAT - #%
ERBETE BRI - REEASRHCBREEETCREBEE_ZE=28+_A=1+—Ht
FEITHEIKR -

TRIHEBEZZEZ-F+_A=+—HELFERREE ( BFES ) RBEHARBE AL AHERY
R R

RIBE=F
R-FEE=E +=A
-B—H =+—H
HWRITE RITE
#H AN 1T EHARR 718 ZiRHEE FRITE FERRN ZRHBEE
BT
ZEZEZF IEETF
ZA+AhH ARZ+HE
ZEE=E
AB+RE 0.67 7,826,000 (2,608,000) (5,218,000) -
EZEF “EERF
=HFZ=++tH AZ+AHE
“EBE=F
AAZ+tH 0.62 20,000,000  (15,000,000) (5,000,000) -
ZEE—&F —EETHF
AR+AH ZHA+RBE
ZEENE
AAZ+AH 0.61 24,304,000  (18,304,000) (6,000,000) -

52,130,000 (35.912,000) (16,218,000) -




Bf 75 &8 = B 2
(#&)
BFE _FEIE+ A= —HIFEE
22. HBITER
AEH ANT
“EEME BB —BEmE —EE=FE
FET FET FET FHET
HITE 1,067,222 306,349 675,020 195,030
S
LA 25,020 75,030 25,020 75,030
AR 1,042,202 231,319 650,000 120,000
1,067,222 306,349 675,020 195,030
R TR E R CIRITER:
- N VRS 249,813 161,299 185,020 49,980
—F 487,409 145,050 160,000 145,050
—EHE 330,000 - 330,000 -
1,067,222 306,349 675,020 195,030
B — R
MEaEZFE (249,813) (161,299) (185,020) (49,980)
— R EIEAZRE 817,409 145,050 490,000 145,050
23. BRIZERATER
EHERERA > HafaT:
AEE
—EEME —EEBE-F
FHT FHIT
REAFREBZEK:
- HERTSHREE 46,773 93,545
- %5 8,045 8,045
54,818 101,590

FEAFREAGELEHET EANEREE AR REARESXS I RIFREaE -
24. FEHBLATIMIEA

FEFEREN - R REEEERKY -




19.

20.

21,

B & &% R} M 5
BE CEEEAf T H = A — F I EE

(%)

FELUNEE B RRTA & HAtb 3K IH

AEEAEEZE SR 30 HE o0 HZEEY - LT AR N B E ZIREZIRE T

REE

—EEOE —EBE=F

FET F#ET

0ZE 90 H 334,482 325,490
91 £ 180 H 20,719 24,222
181 E 365 H 1,952 629
357,153 350,341

HAFEKEE 56,476 88,231
413,629 438,572

BIEHBRITER

RIBENUF+ZA=+—H  CEFHTEXEERBATE « BB REEMIETFZ1FEK 9,416,000
BT ( ZEBE = 48,494,000 87T )  TEEBERIILIEMEMEE - #R%E 7,282,000 BT ( Z8F
ZHED 29,938,000 HEIT ) BAREEBEH T EHETEEMENZER  FIBHEIEE -
EIESRERH MR

DUF s H R B 5 ARIEZ RE 4T -

TEHE

—EBEmNE —EBEoF

FET FHET

0E 90 H 313,984 260,909
91 £ 180 H 42,197 27,572
181 £ 365 H 18,727 18,075
365 HEL L 18,358 8,216
393,266 314,772

HAb R FE 468,074 166,319

861,340 481,091




16.

17

18.

Bt 8 R M E
BE-SENFES A=A+ —HULFE

REELEZER
AEHE
—EEME EBE-F
FET TFHETT
Frit & ESE 24,654 21,235

RIZBENFEAZA=+—H  FEESETIEERNERRAT ("#ER ) EMELZ 50% #i -
ERB—FNBEMGIZTIEECTE LR EEMERHEREEBR ES -

BUTE X

RO EEA - £ER 6.435 ERAR TIIHERHEE:

AER
“EREDNE —EE=F
FETT FET
—ER 795 795
—FTF 655 795
_ERF - 655
1,450 2,245
B R—E R
FIRTRENEE 2 #IE (795) (795)
— R FE IR & FR T8 655 1,450
=E
AEH
“EEME CEE=E
FET FHETT
FER 84,049 62,226
S 175,030 84,051
B 193,776 145,577
452,855 291,854

MNEEH  ETERERAAR -




Bt R

($&)
BE EENFEASf —F=1—HI-FEE
14. BILEE
NS
HEHERE BREE fERE bk ]
FHT FHET FHT FHET
RAE
R_Z2ENE—~H—H 55,299 20,906 56,659 132,864
HnE 9,760 ~ 12,164 21,924
R-EBZENF+_HA=+—H 65,059 20,906 68,823 154,788
KR RE
RIBENFE—~H—H 41,026 8,007 23,400 72,433
AR E AN 5,290 842 6,273 12,405
R-Z2ZWE+-F=+—H 46,316 8,849 29,673 84,838
BRmE3E
R_EFENFE+_A=+—H 18,743 12,057 39,150 69,950
RIZEE=HF+"_H=+—H 14,273 12,899 33,259 60,431

HMBEENAZT A EREY > DERES-TE8s -
FRAARIERT R - WHREEIREDPEH EERFREREES -
SHBRE AR RAR R T RN DERES T8 -

15. BE
FHET
RA{E
RIBEIVE—-A—-HER-BENE+_H=4+—H 63,661
e
R-EBZNE—~F—H 4,714
AR 3,183
R_BENNE+_F=+—H 7,897
BRI E{E
ROBFENFE+_/F=+—H 55,764
R_ZBEZ=%+"HF=+—H 58,947

BB i ihE ATE SR ERE S TR -




11.

12.

13.

B % 8k R M2
HE - SEF = — AL EE

(#)

ME BBERLE(R)
RIBFNEF_A=+—H TEIEGEERZHEBERAR 3,339,000 BT ( " BEE=F: #) -

RERH  AREETESE L AERET P HEORE -

ER-RER
WAER MR B"E LR
FETT FHET FHETT
¥, XN
RAE
RIZBFNHFE-A—H 2,192 1,005 3,197
RE 30 - 30
RIEBENE+—_A=+—H 2,222 1,005 3,227
ITE
R-BENFE—H—H 221 653 874
AR 444 201 645
R-BENFE+_F=+—H 665 854 1,519
BRE B E
RIBZWUF+_F=+—H 1,557 151 1,708
REE=F+"_H=+—H 1,971 352 2,323
RHBARZIRE
—EENE ZEB=F
F AT FHET
JELTHIRE » lAE 1,161,737 895,244

MEBZNF A=+ HIZARENBL EFEFIRHTEE 35 -

FEUS B BB 2 R FRIR

ZEFEDGEERN - RERERTENRY - BEI R > FHFESTEAREEAE T ZHANEER
RUHERESERIIEFREMEE -




ff 75 88 & I

¥

b+ 1/H

BE _EENFEf /A= —HILFRE

10. BEF

11.

BE _ZEENE+_H=1+—HEFEZEREREFIHEEEHF 245,011,000 BT RENERTE

17 1,538,124,661 f3EtE -

EREREETEABEEZECBELER  HEEVBE_EBNF+ _A=+—HLEEZEE

BEEN -

BECEZ ST AL EEZEREFRBERNTIRBUTHFHE:

B R Ay 7

HEEREAENA AL BRI

—EERCH
504,169,000 #5T

1,515,192,387

BN AR s BEEEERE 20,501,401
FHESREE BRI 1,535,693,788
ME - BBRRE

Z5E =%

21 EHE RER

ERE prd - 12 BaEm  MAZHRG RE fEIR ik

FHET FHET FHT FET FHET FHET FHT
FEE
HiAfE
KR_EZENF—H—H 113,036 350,889 1,414,128 4311 11,233 359,820 2,253,417
RE 4,765 6,937 63,326 6,476 3,199 1,369,009 1,453,712
g 2,181 148,849 735,766 10 - (886,806) -
HE - (4,410) (15.000) (18) (2,641) - (22,069)
RIZBNE+ZA=1+—H 119,982 502,265 2,198,220 10,779 11,791 842,023 3,685,060
TER S
H_EBNFE—H—H 10,080 49,800 446,327 1,109 6,937 - 514,253
REEHER 5,615 19,587 139,766 1,396 1,872 - 168,236
B - (489) (8,625) {13) {906) - (10,033)
P_EZENE+"B=1+—H 15,695 68,398 577,468 2,492 7,903 - 672,456
W3 E
RIBEINE+-HA=1+—H 104,287 433,367 1,620,752 8,287 3,888 842,023 3,012,604
R EEB=F+_A=+—H 102,956 301,089 967,801 3,202 4,296 359,820 1,739,164




Bt s s R M
RE S+ = A=+—HILFEE

8. FIEMEX (M)

AEE AT HEFSRERTRENZHIRDT:

—BEMF “EE-F

FET T

BRAS Al F 249,166 600,538
HEHFBRRE 21.5%

(ZEZ=F: 22.1% ) HEZRE 53,649 132,855
IR E B EFRBA

Mg EE (394) (1,859)
RIRBME TR X

ZRBEE 13,632 11,930
REERZMBEECRBEEE 23 119
TR B ATESS

MERARERCEE (29,117) (38,357)
BELEEBEC

MEBREREREE (493) (764)
R B N F R RIEIER / RIR (22,133) (5,697)
BAFEEERE (11,393) (3,249)
KEREZMELH 3,774 94,978

Vo BECEZNER-FZ-E+AST-ALEEEZFEHRERDRBEMI BRI R PEFERHERITH
ZIEERBEHE I TEIRE -

MAFERNER R - SEEMERB R ERRERE -

9. BB
—REMmME IRE=F
FET FHET
AT HERY B RE 7.0 B0 - 107,669
BRI B a8 7.0 #110 - 107,669
- 215,338

EEGTEBRBEE_ZZNE+A=+—HELEEZRE -

~N



Bf 75 8 & I &2
BRE - FEME+ == A HILFE

(#)

Fri8 B
ZEEME TBEZF
FET FHET
RIEZHERE:
TSR
- KEE 36,711 102,862
- BRI E B (11,393) (3,249)
- RIEES /B (22,133) (5,697)
AN FE R H B AL ZRIE 3,185 93916
EIEEEAERE 589 1,062
3,774 94,978

HAARL B EF R B A R FER SRR R - SEEAR FEANER -
Hitt BRI RE/ A AE B ER CRRETH -

RIBERTBIARNER - AREE T HEMWEA T R HE G 8 SR R YIE N F R 88 5 R B
PRS-

Besh - RBERERBERG T2 4#E > AEEETHBLARR T EEFRRESRERR / BiR:

AL E R B A TR T A R L B AR RER — R B R < B A S LR
HgSMRERIEH AR - M EHER -

REERRAAERETHBLFRBETERECRSRREMEHE - FFRNEERTEERRE
BRI EERERSRBMIHRAZ 40% 518 - ZFERTHUHEERBL A B RRERZR
HX - (HARSERREERSRIEREE S TRA -

AERE LB HTIIEEG R LR B R E 1S B -




ESHMEeRETIMS (®|)

HEHEA T TG

EZE 1,000,000 #ETT

1,500,001 #EITE 2,000,000 #ETT
2,000,001 #EITE 2,500,000 #ETT
2,500,001 #EITE 3,000,000 #EIT

Bf % 8% R M (@)
BE-EENEF A — AR

—EEmE

EEAY

8

1

1

1

3,000,001 #EICE 3,500,000 #EIT

i BRESTVHEEEDEEE -

ET

AEEREFNDLA LS - Hg ( ZBE=4:
Hi - EEFWA T RINLREFMESRCMESUT

iz

¥ R HE AR
LRES
IRPRAEFIET B EK

g TEREHFMALZMEN P FIIRE:

#ZE 1,000,000 ETT
1,000,001 ¥ETTE 1,500,000 #IT

—EBEEE
HHEAH

— —m e -]

M%) RALEEE  HBMEER £33

—EENE “EBE=HF
FET FHEIT

180 240

7,175 5,074

2,020 2,983

262 36

9,637 8,333
“REmME ZEEEHF
AE AB

RAEER > FAEEBERLLRSFMAL (BFEEE) (2228 A4%) INERHEINA
WPIMAREER R EERCE - RATFENBEETRECAMSE -




Bt 7% 4% R M &

(®|)
BE - EEIIES = —HIFEE
MEEHR
—EEME ZEE=EF
FET FHET
RITEREHEA 1,364 333
FIA:
- BRAFERNBREEBZRITEX 13,937 17,853
- ARAERBEEECRHEAL
HMERK CHE 390 ) 3,283 980
- EEREIEE BN EE 12,714 6,195
& B AAEE 31,298 25,361
W ERIBEERMEZFE (3,339) -
27,959 25,361

FRCEAMBEERATIN - REEREPES

ESHEREIME

ES

BEEES:
BT
FEENFT
WILIRYIT

BITERCHEE:
< R H AR
RS (WE)
SRRTEFIET B fsX

WL ABBEEZHEERER 2.6%

B -

ZEEmE —EE-E
FHET FHET

300 380

60 -

420 360

780 740

6,897 4,520

2,153 2,755

243 24

10,073 8,039




Bt % %R % M

(%)
BE —EEPES ZF=F—HIFEE
EZXERoBER(|)
ERoE(E)
AEEZEBURTE  TREFIAEEZHENTEES < EEEI
—E X
ZERME “BE=FE
FET FHEIL
e 1,793,805 1,801,751
R LLSh i BRI 268,898 278,619
BRI 188,396 178,656
EIN 171,874 130,881
HA b 27,676 88,519
2,450,649 2,478,426

FRMEREREAFSIREELZ 90% M EURFRSN T EES BT ZSHEZ -

B ER
—EEME ZEEB-F
FET FHET
WERFEIOR:
BTHRA ( BEESME ) 189,938 170,555
SERTRFE #HERK 36,470 27,317
BITHEAR 226,408 197,872
e (B AITERBES ) ¢
- |EEE 12,405 13,770
- B 3,183 3,168
Y - BEEBHRIIITEREN 168,236 129,024
e R 183,824 145,962
BB 1,480 1,350
HEWE BBRFRBIEE 5,553 9,030
W5 e B R RUA 4,501 1,870
EEEERE (SFAZMBERET ) - 10,878

WEEHA:

SRITRI B U 2,454 1,589




Bf 35 % &R M a2
BE=BEIE+ A=A —F I

(%)

EXFRIBFEN (®|)

EBIH(ER)

HEMEIS 2T EEE R EREREESAT:

—EBZE
FHE
HEEC BEEx BREE
27 51 £ RE Hith 58
FHT FHET FET FHET FET FHET
BE
SEEE 771,996 610,835 801,229 525,243 71,808 2,781,221
BEhER 21,235 21235
Kl AFEE 559,328
FoWaE 3,361,784
&
=l 105,829 285,236 263,185 128,432 6,572 789,254
FAEZATIAR 442 561
sEHeR 1,231,815
FRE
BEEC BEEE BREE
*71 L] Xl HE K | ge
FHT FET FHET FHT FET FET FHET
EibE#
EARX 213,826 28,529 32,170 43,148 5,488 2,030 325,191
WE RS 27,295 43,087 53,955 20,345 859 41 145,962

BPEERE - - 10,878 - - - 10,878




Bt % 3% % M

i
BE_EENFS A =+—HIFE

(%)

EXERIFEH(®|)

¥BoHE(HE)
ZEE=E®
HEEC EEZ BREE
5 £ 7 HE Eft B 58

FET FHT FET FET Fi FHET FHET
34
HIHE 684,139 548,955 455,948 786,164 3,220 - 2,478,426
il - 193,327 84,835 - - (278,162) -
¥ 3k 684,139 742,282 540,783 786,164 3,220 (278,162) 2478,426

ERREETETREREE -

DEES 349,271 118,011 47,987 124,033 (3,670 635,625
FHBZ AEXIN (17,336)
=gyl 618,289
MBER (25,361)
Ay gl el 7610 7,610
et 600,538
FrisHiBst (94,978)
KD BRERSARF 505,560
SRR (1,391)

HREEHF 504,169




B 7 48 &= W & CED
BECEEIIES T H = —HIEEE
EZXEROBEH(]|)
¥BEoB(E)
BEM Gz TEEERTEABREESTOT:
—EEME
HEFEC BE®% BREE
&5 5 £ k=3 Ht se
FET FHET FHET FHET THET FET
BE
TEEE 1,241,475 1,347,706 991,293 806,552 188,427 4,575,453
BB 24,654 24,654
RO NFIEE 107,139
AR 4,707,246
BfE
SEARE 280,761 249,335 238,228 511,793 24,970 1,305,087
P AN = U 1,133,062
ZeRal 2,438,149
wEFEC BEEE RHEE
2] E27] EN) o3 Ef N Be
FHT FH#ET FHET FET FET FH#ET FHET
Hibg#l
BARE 426,620 660,978 230,017 85,929 72,062 30 1,475,636

e NigE 42,377 48,617 67,811 22,804 1,570 645 183,824




BT 3% 3 R M &

(#®|)
BE_EENNFESf _H =+ —HILFE
EEERSEEHE (8)
ERoME(8E)
ZEBEWE
HWEE C BEE% BRER
4l ] X7 [F::3 Hit BigH =5E

FHET FHET FET FET FHET FHT FHT
EE 1
HINHE 626,124 360,782 504,670 947,785 11,288 - 2,450,649
HREHE - 184,779 90,872 - - (275,651) -
EEAR 626,124 545,561 595,542 947,785 11,288 (275,651) 2,450,649

HRIRSHE TR ER T -

PIEEE 189,694 5,307 34,625 67,965 (4,326) 293,265
oo AER M (20,148)
BBEF 273,117
A (27,959)
FE(E S8 (b R 4,008 4,008
MRERREF] 249,166
Frigfaks (3,774)
RET DR AR 245,392
SRR (381)
AR EHIF)

~O

245,011




3.

Bt 75 48 & M 32
BE=FEIIE+ A=A —H I

(#)

FESEHHBR(®)

EEAE

BE BIRALESEREE (IFE-RERFHGEENEREARRHECEE ) ERERTZ
EERALDTUERL  FARSHEERKREZL D - EHETEAE LERMAIFERERZR
HERIEEEZEERERATAL - BEARGERETECEEER MRS R A ER YRR
Wz &&EW L - TTREBERMLZEERARIR -

Fi HAE B RA TR EE L IR RERE R BT -

= SR TS At

EaEH e A A B R R R E R IRTER G BRI N B S (TR S8 -

RN

RIBICEHAEN TS B EZ GBS E Rt R Pk -

ERERSEEN

BRENAEEEFARERETIIHER ZERRERECRIFHE - RTREENR RERIIER -

REBAEBEINEHBEER AN - FAEREUEBTEREACERGA MBI RXBECER
F=

EBIH

ALREERZEATEERUERE S NFEHME (EEHEERCRY  FERRTINERERR
B~ REREHM - RFEMISEERETWT:




B 35 8 = M 52
BE-EEWE+=F=A— I

(&)

TEFIHHER(#|)

EE

FRERAE B ERE CREETIER - AP H -
NERE

IR BRIER G BHCERN SR REERRE - DUIVEEECERETERAREEREZER
BiTHE - RERNS EEBRAEAZMTEHEEERE -

WiFERER  AEEETRIWBARRGECEIEERREOEERER HCERAR - X
HETHEREATRARRTHR VIERAE - FELZERZE (08 ) RERRALBMAR
EEZERREE - FFEREEINEREBHE CHARER R -

RIA
ARSI HiE BT IR BORAETR A -

EHENREEF N ERRERFHE - ERREN A RRFARAARE - EREAEEER
E ERERR R INNZ MARZHIER - AT EERARRPK TR REINBZEE -

BEREERYBRERALTERABREEERN G EERRBENCEERERE 2 ZRM AR
TEATREZRE  YHEEAERAEERE - RERERHERGRFEERRENERRER
TR R TR A R PR R BT AE S R IS FEESR ARG A - M 7] R LUK T4 R A 2 S BEEER - 5
ERAHBXIAR —EHRE B EERREN T T RZEGTRNIR S ( BB HERI ) hEaakRHE
ftEERAETSIE  NTOREZSAERAN -

BREMBEARIRNBARRERGEERERES ZERNYRZEMAER > HEHARERESIEH
ZEYRERZOENZFYRERAN A GEN DR ERIBAI -

BREMARECREERSESERGER  TETAAERTEHERRENKEZTRE LR

BERE RSN ABEEREERRMCERMEHE  RERVEGIERE AMRE -
RERIESETARAZEE @ MIEMCBERETGRRATREE -

NE




Bt 35 48 & M 32
BEEFIVEF A=A —HIL

TESEBE(E)

ME BBREE(E)

TERBHERBYZE  BERRE (ERIERN ) CH R EAL K R EAAEE R EE
% o DIERREAMSE AT S - T8 FERMT:

B ET 3.3% - 5%
i T 5% —10%
BRI~ HEERPNERE 20%
RE 20%

Tt P B T LUEL SRR 1R R BARR B8 -

REHERELEARMEECEGERENERBRABREIEZEFTE  YIIAKRRERA -

BEEE

HEBREENARYVHERAEAR - RBUEFEE GRS -

N FIRRES (I AR IR HE N AE AR - AR DU E AR AT T (o P R 88 -

A E TN

YIS SR B R RERE s Fa ST -

RBERZHEEMEE AR EVEE  ERVURAEEE ZHERAEN SRR EREE T
WIBIRFHERE © FREELE C BERR A T MBI LI E SR Y -

fild i SERERR IR B N B A - BRI  HR IARIRE R R B X -

miE

FEREH  AREGECHAPAEVEECREE  DEEECHRET LS EE N HBES
R - MRFEREFREZ BEST G ENEREE  ZREECREEGHRETHE B - W
B IRENFFRERE RBEC -

M EERERER - MEEZIREESYMEBIIR A AT EEER - Mgk REERSE
BRFREEET BB EECREBEMFTEIIREE - B RESBISRET ik -

S~ -



Mg Rmaa
RE-FENF+ =+ —HILFE

TEFHBK(E)

wmeE(|)

MIBZ-F—-A-HAl<WREL ZHEREEREREEA - LH S E GBI B 52 E BB
ERFPOB R AR -

RIZZBZ-F—-A-HRZBRBELEZHETUEARAL LN ERREEANREREERE -
MEBAFREEZHBEREGRERTHEIE -

UGA 2 #ER

HERMLINELRT R EEER RS FLIER -

FEM AR EEE S RAREEA S FOARNERETE -

AR U AR AR TS R RERR

BB AT B B R SR A WO 5 K R U BT R e AT -

RETBABZIRE

B L B IREERAREAEACBREGRIIASRRFRZEEREERNA -

FEEXE

FECEBS R —HEIERIRIMESE TR EERCSELH -

FEEFEGEEXCERTIIAGEREGRER  EAEERGERSELERTEREREACHZ
BUERRIER - AEEEESEER BRI IIIAG G RERA -

WE - BRRHMH

ERTRERAAR  SEBRIFEEBCMFEERAREMEERAS  EPEEEREZEER
A ERIBERLTATMENE - RERCEBTERABAYZE - BSRREIERER -

M - A RER (ER IR ) ERARRTE - #H R REGEAR -



BY 75 88 = B 32
BE-FETES A=A —HILEE

—RBERMBHERZERELE

FAFRBEEEMERIIZAR ETARAR KRN ETEREREFARAR ("B, ) L -

AOBZBRERAFIRRBHPEARKNE (THE ) ERKIZEREROREREEEFRL
Bl (THEAT ) - ARATEREEN AT ( KEERE LTRSS ) LTHER TA%ER, -

ROFZHBAE T ERERE R ERSEES -

BEAERER _EENFE+ B =+—HZREEHEPER 79,024,000 #7C - BEEMAEEENEE 36
B AEGTAREEEREBTEE  AEERAREKERAEEESHEI NS ZBIE KR
EAYE - At AMBERRIESEREREREE -

BOEK S ERJRELZTE

RIZBENE > HHGHAASEMSEFRREIICETE S EIIREHEMBEHRSHER ( T

B BEREER ) A BTEFE A -HRZRFABIGTHHES - FEEYEERET
EZNFE+ A+ —REFECMBRRENRAE SR SRS -

%

EHEHIEETHE  MREEZSHMEREERHEMBEIRA R REEETERNCEE - TF
HU B SRS TR A REE R BURGLZ 255 -

FEEBR

M E AR TIRBR R A R EE R IR R RARE - M EE G BORERS 0T

REREZESE

FEMBERREEALFRENBARRERE T A=+ —HIEZMBHRE -

EABARHECHBARCER  HENBAHEREZERRHEBHLLEETINFEEKRE -

kK

BRI AERARER BN BARCABLENCEERBAZI ATVEEZEZE -




MERERB R
BE-—FEMES A=A AL EE

(%)

—EFmE ZEE-F

FET FHET
mEES
RITER 959,620 301,479
EEBITER (198,747) (622,853)
BEffkE (107,669) (197,802)
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